
 

Council Minutes 11/09/15 1 

CLARKSTON CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  

November 9, 2015 
 

       COUNCIL:  

    Beadles       Nash 

    Provost           Kolstad                       

    Blackmon       White 

 

STAFF: 

   Chief HastingsChief Cooper     Clerk Storey   City Attorney Grow   PWD Martin  

 

AGENDA CHANGES:     

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

MOTION BY BEADLES/NASH to approve the minutes of the October 26, 2015, Regular Meeting.  

Motion carried.  

 

APPOINTMENT TO FILL VACANT COUNCIL POSIITON: 
MOTION BY KOLSTAD/NASH to appoint Belinda Campbell to the vacant council position. Motion 

carried.  The Oath of Office was administered to Campbell and she was seated at the council table.  

 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

A. From the Public:  

Tom Martin, said that November is National Caregiver month and we all know someone who is a 

caregiver. He commented that it can be a thankless task. He asked everything to give thanks to caregivers.  

David Dolomency, 1430 Chestnut, said he was glad that the council recites the Pledge of Allegiance 

because that means they support the laws of the United States.  He said that marijuana is an illegal drug 

under federal law and asked the council to maintain the ban on recreational marijuana. 

Rosemarie Villario, 1301 Sycamore, said she believes in democracy. She said the people of 

Washington and the people of Clarkston voted and she would like to see the wants of the majority upheld.  

James Evans, 1115 Highland Ave, #57, asked the council if they want someone telling them what to 

put in their body. He said he thinks the ban should be lifted and it is not the council’s business what he 

puts in his body as long as he is not hurting anyone.  

Melyssa Andrews, congratulated Campbell for winning the election. She said she was a caregiver for 

a long time and she saw a lot of people in pain. That is part of the reason she is in favor of marijuana. She 

thanked the veterans’ for their service and said they fought for freedom for the country and she thinks the 

people’s vote should matter.  

Tom Martin said he has a problem with the way the ordinance is written regarding medical marijuana 

because medical marijuana is currently banned. Ordinance 1505 requires approval from Federal agencies, 

so the city has effectively banned medical marijuana. 

 

B. From the Mayor:   

Mayor Warren thanked everyone who voted for the EMS Levy and the Transportation Sales Tax.  

 

C.  From Staff:  

 PWD Martin said he said he would report back on beekeeping. He said his research has revealed 16 

areas of concern that the city would need to look at, everything from lot size to location. He said he feels 

it is a land use issue and suggested it go to the Planning Commission for review. He said the Planning 

Commission would make recommendations on whether it would be allowed and if so, in which locations. 

Beadles suggested that landlord approval should be required if the property is a rental. Nash said he 

would not be opposed to beekeeping in certain zones. Blackmon said the industrial zone and maybe large 

residential lots would be logical. Campbell said she thinks the city should investigate the issue. Provost 

asked who would be the enforcement agency.  MOTION BY BLACKMON/NASH to take the issue of 

beekeeping to the Planning Commission. Motion carried, 5-2, Provost and Beadles opposed.  



 

Council Minutes 11/09/15 2 

 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 Finance: Councilmember Provost reported that committee has reviewed the bills. MOTION BY 

PROVOST/BLACKMON to approve the October 31, 2015 invoices for $1,075.58 and the November 9, 

2015 invoices for $421,088.13.  Motion carried.  

 

Public Safety:  No meeting 

  

 Public Works: Councilmember Nash reported on the November 4 meeting. Beekeeping was 

discussed. Sidewalk improvements were discussed and the need to change city code to allow for filing of 

liens if the City has to do repairs. Traffic calming options were discussed. A drywell project on Sycamore 

was discussed and is on the agenda. Still reviewing business license requirements for rental property 

owners. A request for a draft lease was sent to Clarkston Free Parking.  

 

 Admin Committee:  Councilmember Nash said committee met on November 9 and discussed a 

personnel issue.  

 

 Community Development: No meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

 Public Hearing on Revenue Sources for the 2016 Budget, Including Property Tax  

Mayor Warren opened the Public Hearing at 7:22 p.m. 

Clerk Storey gave a brief report on the estimated revenues for the Current Expense Fund for 2016. 

There is an anticipated decrease in revenues of about $115,000 compared to 2015. These are conservative 

estimates. The main sources of decrease are in grants and sales tax. Storey said that he planned only a 

minimal amount for marijuana revenue from the state, saying it is difficult to estimate because of the 

formula the state is using. Councilmember Nash commented that he is pleased at how accurate Storey’s 

revenue projections are over the years.  

Melyssa Andrews, 721 11th St., thanked PWD Martin for researching handicap play equipment for 

the parks.  

Nick Swearingen, 1111 Sycamore, said the City could have all kinds of revenue if they would lift 

the ban. He commented that all the incumbents were voted out of office and that should speak for something.  

The hearing was closed at 7:28 p.m. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Ordinance No. 1548, Assuming the Rights, Powers, Functions and Obligations of the 

Clarkston Transportation Benefit District, 1st Reading.   

 Ordinance No. 1548 was read by title.   

 

B. Bid Award on Brush Truck  

 Chief Cooper reported on the results of the bid opening for the brush truck.  Only one bid was 

received, from General Fire Apparatus for a base price of $177,677 plus $15,813.26 in sales tax. Options 

to bring the truck to NFPA standards add $4,708.01 for a total price of $198,906.28. Cooper said the truck 

will be funded with Assistance to Firefighters grant of $200,000 which includes a 5% match. Chief Cooper 

gave kudos to Danny Tietz who did most of the work on the bid specs for the truck.  MOTION BY 

NASH/BEADLES to award the bid to General Fire Apparatus for $198,906.28.  Motion carried.  

 

C.  Discussion and Direction for 2016 Property Tax Levy 

Clerk Storey said she is asking council for direction to prepare a resolution for the next council 

meeting to set the property tax levy, either with or without the 1% increase allowed by law. MOTION BY 



 

Council Minutes 11/09/15 3 

PROVOST/BEADLES to prepare a resolution to increase property taxes by 1% as allowed by law.  Beadles 

commented that a 1% increase brings only about $8,000 or $9,000, which does not keep up with expenses.  

Motion carried.  

 

D.  Schedule Budget Workshop 

A budget workshop was scheduled for Tuesday, November 17 at 6:00 p.m. 

 

E. Approve Contract for Dry Well Installation 

PWD Martin reminded council that the City entered into an agreement for Sycamore Street Grill 

to make revisions to allow for outdoor seating on Sycamore Street. A drywell is needed there to manage 

stormwater. Martin said the project would have been necessary even without the sidewalk revisions to 

eliminate flooding issues. Martin said he obtained three quotes and the low bid is from Roach 

Construction for just under $12,000.00. Martin said the developer will be paying for the patchback of the 

pavement as their contribution to the project so the city’s cost should be less than the $12,000.   Martin 

said the funds will come from the Stormwater budget. MOTION BY NASH/BEADLES to authorize the 

mayor to sign the agreement with Roach Construction for a total of $11,666.06.  Kolstad asked if there is 

any reason to think the low bid is not the best option. Martin said he has worked with this contractor on 

other projects and they are very responsible. Motion carried.  

 

F. Discussion, Repeal Ban on Recreational Marijuana 

  Councilmember Kolstad said there are a lot of people who want to see the ban lifted. He said he 

has had discussion with the City’s attorneys about whether there is reason not to lift the ban.  He said the 

council has to be fiscally responsible and he is not convinced there is risk to the city. He asked Richardson 

or Grow to explain why the ban should not be lifted today. Attorney Richardson said that discussion would 

be held in executive session. 

 MOTION BY KOLSTAD/ CAMPBELL to take whatever steps necessary to start the process of 

lifting the ban.  City Attorney Grow said the City has an attorney representing them on the lawsuits and the 

council should hear from him before making a decision. Richardson said there are risks that need to be 

managed before making a decision. He said Mr. Harper is scheduled to attend the council meeting on 

December 14. He suggested any action be tabled until after discussion.  Kolstad asked how much that might 

cost the City. Richardson asked if he means having Harper meet with the Council or the cost of continuing 

litigation.  Kolstad said there is a cost involved with continuing to prosecute Plemmons and Jackson and 

there is a cost involved with Harper continuing to represent the City. Kolstad said there is a court date on 

November 30 where the City is going to try and work against Kelly and Matt and he doesn’t think the City 

needs to do that. Richardson said the City is not prosecuting either party; the criminal charges have been 

dismissed. The injunction against Greenfield Co. is in the appeal process which was filed by Greenfield. 

Richardson said the discussion on how to best manage those cases is a discussion that should occur in 

executive session. Kolstad the voters have spoken and the City needs to stop spending money on something 

that is no longer an issue.   

 MOTION BY PROVOST/BEADLES to table the topic until the council has received legal advice.  

Provost said his concern is to keep the City’s liability at a minimum. Motion to table carried, 5-2, Kolstad 

and Campbell opposed.  

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

 Councilmember Nash congratulated the winners of the election. He said he would like to see the 

$20 license tab fee repealed before the new sales tax goes into effect, possibly by January 1.  

 Councilmember Beadles commented on Mr. Martin’s caregiver comments. He said there are 

approximately 40 million caregivers in the country and as the population ages, it will become even more 

prevalent. 

 Councilmember Campbell thanked people for their support. 

 Councilmember Kolstad said the reason there is a ban is because of the current council. He said 

their restraint now is laughable. He said the people have spoken and every incumbent is being replaced. 

And it is not just because of the marijuana issue.  

 Councilmember Beadles said people turned out for this election because there is controversy. He 



 

Council Minutes 11/09/15 4 

asked the audience if they would be around a year from now when there is no controversy.  He asked how 

many have ever volunteered their time to help with organizations like Interlink.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
  Council went into executive session at 7:55 p.m. to discuss union negotiations and litigation. No 

action is anticipated as a result of the session. Anticipated length of session is 20 minutes. Session was 

extended for an additional 5 minutes. Council returned to open session at 8:25 p.m. 

  

ADJOURNMENT: 

  

Meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

__________________________        __________________________________________ 

Vickie Storey, City Clerk   Kathleen A. Warren, Mayor 

 

Total Fund Expenditures, 10/31/15 60260-61, 20151001-05 $1,075.58 

Total Fund Expenditures, 11/09/15 60262-63, 60308-373 $139,039.66 

Payroll, 10/31/15 60264-60307 $282,048.47 

 


